### PENWITH COLLEGE STUDENT HANDBOOK

# 2023/24



### LOOK FURTHER REACH FURTHER GO FURTHER



#### WELCOME

We hope that your studies at Truro and Penwith College will be both enjoyable and rewarding. You will have every opportunity that outstanding teaching, high quality resources and expert advice can offer, within a friendly community.

These notes are for full-time students entering the College in September, 2023. One purpose of this handbook is to help you settle into your courses and find your way around the various areas and facilities of the College. You should download this handbook or save the link for reference. Truro and Penwith College exists for the benefit of its students, both full-time and part-time. We hope you will become quickly aware of, and make full use of, the many opportunities it offers. Within this document you will find a small number of rules and regulations. The College can only function smoothly if its members observe basic rules. As full-time students, you will be expected to observe College regulations.

Remember that what you gain from your studies in the College will depend largely on your efforts. The staff and facilities of the College are here for you to make the most of, and staff will be happy to support you in every way. We hope that you will enjoy your time in the College as well as gain the education, training and qualifications that you seek.

Finally, if you have any issues, please let us know and we will do everything we can to address the problem quickly.

Martin Tucker - Principal

## CONTENTS

Term Dates	4
Lecture Times	4
Equality of Opportunity	5
Enrolment	5
Course Changes	5
Personal Tutor	
Attendance	5
Recording Your Progress	6
Progress Reports	6
Progress Evening	6
Study Plus	6
Exams & Assessment	6
Work Experience	7
Private Study	7
Learning Centres	

#### LEARNING SERVICES

Learning Services Support	9
Students with Learning Difficulties & Disabilities	
E Learning and IT Support	10
GCSEs & Functional Skills	11
Higher GCSE Maths	11

#### STUDENT SERVICES

Careers	12
Attendance	13
Personal Support	13

Personal Support13
Mental Health Appointments13
Counselling Services 13
Financial Matters 13
Benefits 14
International Students14

### OTHER SERVICES & RESOURCES

15
15
15
16
17

#### HEALTH & SAFETY

Fire	17
First Aid	17
College Lifts	17
Your Health	18
Drugs	18

17

19

26

#### ADMINISTRATION

Course Costs	19
Tuition Fees	19
Learner Support Fund	19
Bus Passes	19
Motor Vehicles	20
Lockers	20
Lost Property	20
Information	20
Complaints Procedure	21
Student Code of Conduct	21
Data Protection	22
The College Charter	22
Safeguarding	24

#### STAFF

8

12

15

Senior & Operational Management	26
Key Staff	27
Penwith Campus Map	28

#### **TERM DATES**

#### Autumn Term 2023

First years only: Thursday 7 September - Tuesday 19 December

Second Year A Level, Extended Diploma & IB students: Monday 11 September - Tuesday 19 December (Half Term: Monday 23 October - Friday 27 October)

Spring Term 2024

Tuesday 2 January - Thursday 28 March (Half Term: Monday 12 February - Friday 16 February)

#### Summer Term 2024

Monday 15 April - Friday 5 July (Half Term: Monday 27 May - Friday 31 May

#### **LECTURE TIMES**

Classes at the College start promptly at 9.15am and end by 4.15pm. You will be given your timetable at the start of the course. The timetable will show your classes and lunch breaks. Each student will have an individual timetable, but the standard class times below give an indication of typical timings and lengths of lessons.

#### Monday to Friday

Session 1 9.15 to 10.45 Session 2 11.00 to 12.30/12.40 Session 3 13.10 to 14.40 Session 4 14.45 to 16.15

#### EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY

Truro and Penwith College is committed to meeting its duties contained in *The Equality Act 2010*. We aim to create a culture of inclusiveness and to challenge discrimination, taking positive action in order to remove barriers to the educational and personal progression of individual learners. To achieve this aim the College will not tolerate unfair or unlawful discrimination.

The College's Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy and commitment to the Investors in Diversity standard demonstrates that the College will seek to remove any existing barriers to all staff, students, governors and visitors, irrespective of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil partnerships, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Truro and Penwith College endeavors to promote an inclusive working and learning environment, which supports the individuals within its community irrespective of their background. The College aims to promote equality of opportunity by providing full and equal access to all students who can benefit from its provision, and by encouraging and enabling all members of the College to build and contribute to a society that values cultural and social diversity. A focus on learner voice and involvement in instigating change reflects this commitment.

#### ENROLMENT

All students enrol at the start of their course. If the information you give changes, e.g. address, telephone number, etc., you must tell your personal tutor.

#### **COURSE CHANGES**

Should you, for any reason, wish to change your course, you must first discuss this with your tutor and Programme Team Leader (PTL) / Deputy Team Leader (DTL). Your PTL/DTL will need to agree to the change and ensure that it is recorded. You must not make any change to your timetable or course until you have agreed this first with your PTL/DTL.

#### PERSONAL TUTOR

All full-time students are placed in a tutor group. Usually, your tutor will be one of the lecturers who teaches you or who has a link to your studies at College. You will see your tutor at least once a week and have contact with them at other times, both in and outside class.

#### ATTENDANCE

100% attendance is expected of all students.

If you need to be absent from College for any reason, you must seek the agreement of your tutor before the event. If you are unavoidably absent for any reason, e.g. illness, please let the College know immediately on the first day of absence, by telephoning the attendance line on 01736 809410 (otherwise by letter addressed to your tutor) giving the reason and the likely period of absence. Messages about other urgent matters must be relayed to your tutor via your Programme Team Administrator.

Your attendance and punctuality are recorded by the College and will feature as part of your overall Personal Portfolio. We expect you to attend courses fully, since there is a clear link between full attendance and successful performance.

#### **RECORDING YOUR PROGRESS**

During your time at the College, your progress and achievements will be recorded by your tutor. You will be involved with your tutor in reviewing your performance and action planning in response. These progress reviews will be formally recorded. In addition your tutor will support you in writing a Personal Statement, which will recognise and give credit for a whole range of academic and other achievements.

#### **PROGRESS REPORTS**

Reports are prepared for all full-time students at the end of the Autumn and Spring Terms. Although a copy is sent to parents/carers, we recognise that you will be the main user of the information, guidance and advice included in the report.

#### **PROGRESS EVENING**

All full-time courses hold Progress Evenings. In year one, these are at the end of each term - except at the end of the third term of the first year. This session is delayed until the beginning of the second year so that action plans can be clearly identified for year two, following examination results. Apart from these meetings, if your parent/guardian wishes to discuss any matter, the first point of contact is usually the tutor and after that the PTL/DTL.

#### ENRICHMENT

Every full-time student is required to take part in the Enrichment programme and to take advantage of a wide range of sporting and recreational opportunities. Some options within this programme will lead to additional qualifications. This aspect of your course will play an important part in your personal development and your contribution will form part of your Portfolio. Arrangements for choosing activities are made during the first few weeks of the Autumn Term.

#### **EXAMS & ASSESSMENT**

The College policy is that students take responsibility for their own examination entries or registration. Entry forms are distributed in lectures and guidance is given by subject tutors, but it is your responsibility to make sure your forms are handed in. All students under the age of 19 at the start of their course have their first attempt at a subject exam free of charge, but repeat entries must be paid for at the time of entry. Further information is available from the Exams Office in Treneere Manor Tr204, the examination notice boards and on Sharepoint. If you have any special requirements for exams please contact Sara Farrington in Treneere Manor.

#### WORK EXPERIENCE

Vocational courses usually have regular short or block work placements as part of their vocational preparation. All other students will also be encouraged to undertake work experience while they are at the College. Work experience will help you with career choices and to gain transferable employability skills. For many academic and vocational routes out of Truro and Penwith College, it strengthens your CV and puts you one step ahead.

Tutors should be informed of all work experience placements. Work experience will follow appropriate safety guidelines and students will receive full tutorial support from lecturers and staff. The work experience pack is available from Student Services in the Lamorna Building.

#### PRIVATE STUDY

All students on full-time courses should spend some of their time in private study. Your workload will require you to continue your studies for at least 15 hours per week in addition to lecture time. The College Learning Centres are good places to study; Learning Centre staff manage the Learning Centre spaces to ensure that a good working atmosphere is maintained so that students in these areas can get on with their work without being disturbed.

It is important that work is handed in at the time specified so you will need to establish the habit of using your private study time effectively. If you have difficulties planning, organising or knowing what to do, consult your personal tutor or the staff in the Learning Centres. To a large extent, your success on your course will depend upon the early acquisition of good study habits.

## **LEARNING SUPPORT**

#### LEARNING CENTRES

On the Penwith campus, Learning Centres are located in Sennen, Porthcurno and Zennor buildings. All of the Learning Centres are open Monday to Friday from 8.30am throughout the College day, with Porthcurno Learning Centre having some extended evening hours in the week.

All LCs offer a range of resources and facilities which will help you with your course at college. All LCs provide study space where you can either use a college PC or bring your own device to use and study tables for small groups and individuals to work quietly.

You will find resources such as books, journals and DVDs to help you with your studies. All resources are free to borrow, using your college ID as your library card and library staff who work in these areas are always happy to show you how to find the resources that you need. Many students are able to borrow course textbooks while they study at college. It is important to make sure that all textbooks you are given and any items you borrow from the libraries are issued to your library account and returned to library staff at the end of your course. In addition to the physical resources that can be borrowed from the libraries, you can also access an array of useful databases, online resources and eBooks via the Learning Centre pages on Sharepoint (known as The Library Hub), many of which can be accessed when you are off campus. The College Learning Centres also provide printers and copiers which library staff can help you use. They can also help with resetting your college password should you need to do so.

Through the Library Services area on the Intranet homepage, you can access the Library Hub and our Library Catalogue direct. Here you can search for resources, renew items you have borrowed, and access our online resources. The Library Hub is also the place to discover anything you need to know about the College libraries.

Remember, the Learning Centre staff are here to support you, so please do ask if you need help with anything.

#### LEARNING SUPPORT

Most students need support with their learning at some point during their time at college. If you are struggling with your work or feel you need some additional input to achieve your potential, we are here to help.

We have a range of videos, resources and support materials available on our Learning Support Sharepoint page which provides a good summary of the work we do and how we can support you. If there is anything that you feel we might be able to do, the best way to access support is to pop in and see us in Lamorna, room 302/303, complete the referral form on our sharepoint or email us at *learningsupport@* truro-penwith.ac.uk, we will be more than happy to discuss the types of support available in a bit more depth as well as work with you to design the right type of support package for you which could include:

- General advice and guidance including liaising with your lecturers about what you need
- 1:1 tuition with our Learning Support Tutors who can work with you in enhancing your English, Maths or Study Skills.
- Dyslexia screening and referral to the exams team if appropriate/ eligible.
- Assistive technology training and issue of tinted reading rulers/ overlays
- Loan of a laptop, reading pen or a dictaphone.
- Access to quiet, calm spaces across the college Campus

Some learners require support in class too and this is provided by our team of Learning Support Assistants (LSAs). We support learners with a wide range of special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) at Truro and Penwith College. If you have an identified SEND or medical need that requires specific equipment or adaptations to the College environment, we can work with you, our Operations team and any specific healthcare professionals who work with you e.g. teacher of the deaf/visually impaired, physiotherapist, occupational therapist, to ensure that your specific needs are met.

There is always a member of staff available to help you in Lamorna Room 302 / 303, so pop in and see us!

#### STUDENTS WITH LEARNING DIFFICULTIES & DISABILITIES

The College welcomes applications from students with learning difficulties and disabilities. Students can access a wide range of externally accredited and Collegecertificated courses through programmes that are developed to meet individual needs. Learning support and specialist equipment are provided as required.

#### **E LEARNING AND IT SUPPORT**

eLearners visit the Penwith campus on a Monday and Tuesday and can be contacted through the Learning Centres or by calling 01872 308300. Penwith students should call 01872 308300 for eLearner support on other days of the week.

- All aspects of IT from basic to advanced
- Word processing, databases and spreadsheets
- HTML, web design and publishing
- Using graphics and presentation packages
- Access to internet resources and Sharepoint
- Image and text scanning

Guidance for new students about access to the Intranet, Student Advantage and access while off-campus:



Guidance for using Outlook, Office 365 and OneDrive:



#### **GCSES & FUNCTIONAL SKILLS**

All students have the opportunity to improve their grades in English and Maths. This is compulsory where a Grade 4 or above has not been achieved as this can impact on progression to Level 3 courses, Higher Education and employment. Both GCSE and Functional Skills courses are available with the appropriate level of study being determined by delivery teams based on previous qualifications and an initial assessment.

#### **HIGHER GCSE MATHS**

Students with a grade 4 or above in GCSE maths who want to achieve a higher grade will be able to attend a Higher GCSE resit course. This will only be offered in one option block, so may not fit with all students' timetables. Students should see their PTL/DTL to see if this is possible. Alternately there will also be an evening course (6pm -9pm) available to study Higher GCSE maths.



Advice and support is available for students with dyslexia and dyscalculia.

Finding it difficult to prioritise? The Learning Services team is here to help you.

Don't struggle on your own.

For more information please contact Learning Services, first floor Lamorna building or email: learningsupport@truro-penwith.ac.uk

## **STUDENT SERVICES**

Student Services is situated in the Lamorna building on the Penwith campus.

#### CAREERS

The College has received the Investor in Careers Award in recognition of the comprehensive service that is provided. We have also been awarded the *matrix* Quality Standard in information, advice and guidance services. We have a commitment to offer impartial, supportive, informal and timely careers information, advice and guidance to all students.

All students, both full and part-time, including adults, are entitled to the following:

- Impartial advice and guidance from College staff through individual guidance interviews.
- Access to a full range of College resources, e.g. careers literature, including university materials, careers software, training and job information.
- Group workshops in tutorial sessions, on a range of issues.
- Ongoing support to students to help them resolve any problems they may encounter during their learning programme.
- Support in researching and applying for Higher Education courses.

- Support in finding employment and training including help with CVs, job applications, interview techniques and work experience.
- Attendance at a variety of careers events, e.g. Penwith College Higher Education Events, UCAS Convention, Graduate Careers Fair (HE students), Student Services Workshops and presentations.
- A Tutorial Programme is provided for full-time FE students. See your tutor for details.
- Contribution to College careers delivery via evaluation surveys and Student Association.
- Ex-students and non-students are also welcome to arrange careers advice and guidance and use careers resources.

Please use these entitlements as appropriate to you. If you have any reason to believe that you are not receiving this service, please contact the Student Services Lead or your PTL.

If you would like an appointment with a careers advisor, please drop into Student Services - Lamorna Foyer.

#### ATTENDANCE

Penwith College has an electronic swipe card registration system; registers are taken for all lectures. If you are ill or unable to attend College for any reason, your parent must call your Programme Team Administrator or phone the attendance line 01736 809410 on the first and any subsequent days of absence. If you are 18 or above, you can make the call yourself. Remember to check your attendance record on the College MIS system regularly. Financial support from the Truro and Penwith College Bursary is only available to students with high levels of attendance.

#### PERSONAL SUPPORT

Student Services staff are available to support students and provide access to information on a wide range of issues such as stress, financial problems and relationships. Please drop in to Student Services, Lamorna Foyer. Advice is available Monday to Friday 8.30am - 4.30pm.

#### MENTAL HEALTH APPOINTMENTS

Confidential appointments are offered to students and staff who may have questions or concerns about mental health issues. To book an appointment, contact Student Services or email *abic@truro-penwith.ac.uk*  Appointments can be made to receive advice, support and answer questions you may have, which are offered by experienced, fully-qualified mental health advisers.

#### **COUNSELLING SERVICES**

While studying, some students may experience personal and emotional issues that they would benefit from sharing with a trained counsellor. These may be, for example, connected with making new friends, managing your course work, family problems, ill health, or past difficulties. Working with a counsellor can offer the opportunity to explore and talk through situations in your life that cause you concern. For more information speak to Student Services staff.

All students can make an appointment with Penwith College counsellors in the following ways:

- Email the counsellors on: counsellingpenwith@truro-penwith. ac.uk
- Call into the Student Services area to discuss or to apply for counselling.

#### **FINANCIAL MATTERS**

Advice and help can be sought in Student Services on a range of financial issues, for example:

- Funds for Further Education students.
- Help with travel costs.
- Help with childcare costs.
- Help with the cost of essential course-specific materials.
- Funding for Higher Education courses.

#### BENEFITS

The benefits system is complex and advice should be sought prior to applying. If you feel that you are eligible to receive benefits while you are studying, please come to Student Services to speak to someone. You can also receive advice from your local Jobcentre Plus.

#### INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS

Please contact the Student Services Lead, Laura Kaley. You can email her at: laurak@ truro-penwith.ac.uk or pop in to Student Services in person. PENWITH COLLEGE

For all your stationery needs.

Open daily 10.30am - 1.30pm Zennor building, ground floor.



### OTHER SERVICES & Resources

#### MESSAGES

College messages for students are placed on the plasma screens at receptions. The College doesn't provide a general message service for students.

#### REFRESHMENTS

There are catering areas in Zennor and Porthcurno buildings offering a wide range of reasonably priced meals including breakfasts. Details of opening times and menus can be found on the Intranet. Outside of these hours, hot and cold drinks and snacks are available from vending machines. No food or drink is to be consumed in College buildings other than in these areas. There is also a student-run facility in Senara restaurant in the Zennor building and a cafe in Treneere Manor.

#### STUDENT ASSOCIATION

The Student Association exists to represent all full-time students in advising the College Management of educational and recreational matters that are of interest to students of the College. The Student Association is elected at the end of the Spring Term. No Association membership fee is charged. Membership is not compulsory. If nominated and you do not wish to be a member, please advise reception. Committee members can be contacted via reception. Any complaints regarding the Student Association should be made using the complaints form obtainable from reception. The Student Association organises events and fundraising activities for which the Student Association is solely responsible and no liability arising out of its organisation is accepted by Truro and Penwith College.

#### STUDENT BULLETIN

The most important regular service of information about what is going on in the College is the Student Bulletin. This is published each week and is available to download from the College Intranet. All members of the College are able to convey information, notices, results, adverts etc. via the Bulletin. If you have an item to be included, it should be emailed to *emmakelly@truro-penwith.ac.uk* by 9.00am on the preceding Friday.

#### HEALTH, WELLBEING & SPORT PROGRAMME

The College is committed to providing an environment where students can grow and develop by offering a wide range of fully inclusive (HWS) Health, Wellbeing & Sport sessions to support you during your time at College.

Sheona, our HWS Co-ordinator, oversees the delivery of the programme, with the support of the fantastic HWS team. The programme has been developed to encourage all students to participate in regular enrichment activities and in turn help achieve academic goals.

We recognise that students are motivated by different things. Whether it's about a healthier lifestyle, forming friendships, or completing a challenge to raise money for charity, the HWS programme has something for everyone.

The menu of timetabled activities in updated every term and includes gym, fitness sessions, football, mindfulness, badminton, basketball, climbing wall, swimming and a selection of other wellbeing sessions, all of which are totally free. Our students who have engaged with the sessions have often found them life changing in supporting their mental wellbeing and physical health.



For more information about the activities email: hws@truro-penwith.ac.uk

#### please follow us:

facebook.com/

HealthWellbeingAndSport

instagram.com/healthwellbeingandsport

## **HEALTH & SAFETY**

Truro and Penwith College considers it important that the management, staff and students work towards achieving a safe and healthy environment for themselves and others. Please report any potential hazard to reception. A Keep Safe session will form part of the first month of the tutorial programme.

#### FIRE

Anyone discovering a fire should sound the alarm immediately by breaking the glass front of the nearest available alarm call point. These call points are red boxes located in exit routes throughout the College. During your induction your tutor will explain the fire drill to you in more detail.

Fire drills are conducted regularly. Please leave the building in an orderly fashion by the nearest available emergency exit. Signage instructing what to do in the event of a fire is posted throughout the buildings along with assembly point locations. DO NOT use the lifts in the event of a fire or emergency. Please move well clear of the exits and assemble at the designated assembly point for your building while the buildings are cleared and checked for your safe return. DO NOT return into the building until instructed by a Fire Marshal or member of staff.

Emergency exits should be kept clear and tidy, free from obstruction with waste materials placed in the dedicated bins provided. Smoking or vaping is not permitted on the College campus.

#### **FIRST AID**

In case of an accident or emergency contact the nearest First Aider or the nearest reception so that qualified staff can assist. All accidents must be reported to your tutor.

#### **COLLEGE LIFTS**

Please note that the lifts in all the College buildings are available for use only by people with a disability and members of the College staff who are moving equipment, etc., between floors. All other members of the College must use the stairs.

Do not use the lifts in the event of a fire or emergency.

#### ACCESSIBILITY

The College endeavours to provide a fully accessible environment suitable for the needs of all our students. If you experience any problems with access to any of our facilities, then please raise this matter informally with your PTL.

#### YOUR HEALTH

If you have any medical history that is likely to affect you at College, however minor, it is important that you give full details to the College at enrolment. If you become ill while at Penwith College, please report to the reception or the nearest First Aider and everything possible will be done to assist you and arrangements made, where possible, for you to go home.

#### DRUGS

Drugs, other than prescribed medicines, must not be brought onto the College premises. Alcohol is not permitted on site. The use of any behaviour-changing substance in or around College grounds is considered as Gross Misconduct under our Student Disciplinary Procedure. Any misuse of such substances will result in immediate suspension from College pending a Disciplinary Meeting.

## **ADMINISTRATION**

#### COURSE COSTS

Truro and Penwith College will loan essential books, etc., to you, but students on some courses may need to spend money on certain items of equipment. You will be told at the start of the year what these costs are likely to be. We ask all students to pay a resources deposit at the start of their course. The deposit will be returned when all books, etc., have been handed in at the end of your course.

#### **TUITION FEES**

Most full-time students under the age of 19 at the start of September do not have to pay course fees. Students over that age will be liable for course fees, as well as exam fees and some other costs. However, depending on your personal circumstances you may be entitled to tuition fee remission. Please contact Student Services in the first instance for advice.

#### LEARNER SUPPORT FUND

Eligibility for financial help with essential course-related expenses and travel to and from College is assessed through the Truro and Penwith College Bursary. Contact Student Services for details.

#### **BUS PASSES**

We will give bursary support to students towards their bus pass. If your household income is below £70,000 you can apply for a bursary to pay for some or most of your travel costs. The support levels are:

A. For Household Income under £21,000: Pay £100 per year for the bus pass\*. This can be paid termly through the portal after the 25th August as follows: Autumn term £50, Spring term £25, Summer term £25.

B. For Household Income £22,001 -£31,000: Pay £150 per year for the bus pass\*. This can be paid termly through the portal after the 25th August as follows: Autumn term £70, Spring term £40, Summer term £40.

C. For Household Income £31,001 -£70,000: Pay £300 per year for the bus pass\*. This can be paid termly through the portal after the 25th August as follows: Autumn term £130, Spring term £85, Summer term £85.

\*On application and dependent upon a minimum of 90% attendance.

Families with more than one student at the College are encouraged to contact Student Services for support.

#### **MOTOR VEHICLES**

There is limited provision for student parking of motor vehicles. Once registered, the parking permit must be displayed prominently. Vehicles are brought into Penwith College grounds entirely at your own risk and you must use only the designated parking areas and observe the 10mph speed limit; due consideration must be shown to other vehicles and pedestrians. If you are observed driving carelessly, your permit will be withdrawn.

Student Parking Permit application forms are available from Sennen reception. Students are required to show proof of insurance, driving license and MOT.

Please note, a car park permit does not guarantee that a space will be available. Do not, for any reason at all, park outside the main College entrance and, most importantly, in the spaces designated for disabled people and visitors to the College.

#### LOCKERS

Lockers are available to students who require them. Keys may be obtained from your Programme Team Administrator on the basis of a key deposit of £5 per annum. It is each student's responsibility to ensure that books, personal belongings, etc., are reasonably secure. The College can accept no liability for losses.

#### LOST PROPERTY

Any property losses, including money, should be reported immediately to your tutor or PTL/DTL. Enquiries about lost property should be made at Student Services and any property found should be handed in there. Unclaimed property will be disposed of after one term. Students are responsible for the security of their own property. The College cannot compensate for the loss of personal items.

#### INFORMATION

Regular tutorial meetings and a weekly bulletin will form the main means of communication to full-time students. In this way, you will hear about changes and events of interest. It will also be important for you to keep a close eye on those noticeboards that display vital information, e.g. exams, careers events, room changes, sports activities. Urgent, day-to-day information is usually displayed on the screens at receptions. You should look at this every morning. Messages cannot be taken for students except in cases of emergency.

Your College email account is an essential part of how the College communicates with you. Key messages will be sent to this account so please make sure you check it regularly.

#### **COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE**

The College exists to meet the needs of the students and of the community it serves. We will work as hard as we can to ensure that things do not go wrong but, if a problem arises, we will do everything we can to address it.

If you have a complaint about the College, you should speak to the member of the College's staff with whom you have been dealing. If the matter is not resolved by this process you should follow the College Complaints Procedure, a copy of which is available from the Principal's Secretary.

#### ASSESSMENT

College policies and procedures relating to the assessment of student work including the assessment policy, assessment appeals policy, examination appeal of results procedure and the malpractice policy are available in the Quality Policies for Students section on the College Intranet.

#### STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

The guidelines contained in this handbook are intended to maintain an environment that helps you to make the most of your time here. We hope you will find them reasonable and will follow them naturally.

The College tries to keep its rules and regulations to a minimum. Everyone in the College community is expected to behave in a mature manner and to show care and consideration for the welfare of others. Students are expected to work hard and take responsibility for their own learning.

Students should:

- Attend lectures and other programmed events regularly and punctually.
- Inform their lecturer or tutor as soon as practicable if for any reason they are unable to attend a lecture or other programmed event.
- Use College facilities and behave generally in a way that respects the needs and aspirations of others to learn, teach and live within the community of the College.
- Familiarise themselves with the College's Health and Safety and other regulations, comply with these and act at all times with due regard for their own safety and that of others.
- Respect the property of the College and of its staff, students and visitors.
- Support staff and other students in the maintenance of a clean and tidy environment throughout the College.
- Follow the reasonable instructions of members of the College staff.

Failure to comply with the Code of Conduct may lead to disciplinary action. A copy of the College Disciplinary Policy can be obtained on request from Sennen reception. As part of your induction you will be asked to read and sign the Code of Conduct.

#### DATA PROTECTION

In order to meet the needs of our students and to run their courses effectively it is necessary for the College to collect and process information.

For all our students we record:

- Name.
- Address.
- Telephone number.
- Attendance.

For students on qualification courses we may also record information about:

- Qualifications on entry.
- Progress on the course.
- Qualification on exit.
- Destination after completing the course.
- Course fee payment record.
- Additional support requirements (if applicable).
- Ethnicity.

The information is used:

- For administrative purposes connected with your course.
- To notify Careers South West if a young person drops out of college or leaves their course.
- To inform students and, if they are 16-18, their parents, about progress on their course.
- To write references and to assist in UCAS applications.

- To provide the Department of Education with statistical information when requested to do so.
- To publish College examination results.

If you want to see any of the information held about you or if you do not want your examination results to be published, then please contact your PTL in the first instance.

#### THE COLLEGE CHARTER

Truro and Penwith College is a Tertiary College. The College offers everyone high quality education and training. While the College expects high standards of performance from its students and trainees, the community has a right to expect the highest quality service from the College in every respect of its activity. The Charter seeks to set out the quality standards for the variety of activities in which the College is engaged.

The full College Charter is available at receptions and in the Learning Centres. The Charter covers many areas including:

1) Before you become a student, the College aims to:

Provide information and guidance for all students including: the learning facilities available; help with choice of a programme of study; details of the curriculum support services; information about fees, costs, transport services and any financial support available.

Upon request, provide information about our facilities and services for students with learning difficulties and disabilities, including access arrangements.

Provide all information about enrolment, student achievements and destinations through Open Events, prospectuses, course leaflets and individual appointments with qualified and experienced staff. 2) When you become a student, the teaching staff will:

a) Manage your induction; help with study; introduce your programme or unit; monitor progression; assess procedure and give impartial advice; give guidance and counselling for full-time students.
b) Keep you informed of key dates, explain learning activities, ensure all classes start and end on time and give regular feedback.

3) While you are a student, the College will: Enable you to participate and express views through the appropriate channels; provide a supportive and stimulating environment; provide an appropriate setting for internal and external exams; employ well qualified staff; ensure lifelong learning opportunities; provide an Equal Opportunities Policy and Disability Statements; provide a reference as required; provide you with certification of the qualifications you have achieved as a student at the College; provide any additional support for students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities.

4) College expectations while you are a student:

To keep to the rules and regulations; respect the College environment and other people's property; take responsibility for your own learning; treat everyone with respect, regardless of differences of ability, culture, race, gender, age, sexual orientation or social class.

5) What parents and employers can expect from the College:We involve parents in their child's education at the College through Open Day/Evenings, Admissions Interviews,Progress Evenings and reporting regularly on academic progress.

For details of what employers can expect, please see the full College Charter.

6) What the local community can expect from the College:

We work with local organisations to meet the educational, training and recreational needs of the community. We respond positively to meet the education and training needs of employers, community groups and others.

#### SAFEGUARDING

Truro and Penwith College is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children, young people and vulnerable adults and expects all staff and volunteers to share this commitment. This means that we have a Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and appropriate procedures in place. All staff, including volunteers and governors, must ensure that they are aware of these procedures. Sometimes we may need to share information and work in partnership with other agencies when there are concerns about a child's, young person's or vulnerable adult's welfare. We will ensure that our concerns about our children, young people and vulnerable adults are discussed with their parents/carers first (as appropriate) unless we have reason to believe that such a move would be contrary to the child's, young person's or vulnerable adult's welfare.

#### PENWITH COLLEGE SAFEGUARDING TEAM

The designated staff in the College for Child Protection and Safeguarding concerns are:



Lisa Briscoe Designated Safeguarding Lead t: 01872 308039 e: lisabriscoe@truro-penwith.ac.uk



Joe Parma Assistant Safeguarding Officer t: 01736 335016 e: joeparma@truro-penwith.ac.uk



Laura Kayley Safeguarding Officer t: 01736 809033 e: laurak@truro-penwith.ac.uk

Other team members: Mary Martin Stef Wade Bridget Shroesbree Steve Kenward

### Who should I talk to if I have concerns about a child, young person or adult with care and support needs?

#### Truro College including Tregye Campus

t: 01872 305712 e: safeguarding@truro-penwith.ac.uk

#### **Penwith College**

t: 01736 809419 e: safeguardingpenwith@truro-penwith.ac.uk

#### Ottery STEM & Health Skills Centre, Bodmin

Jodie Davey Assistant Safeguarding Officer t: 01872 267586 e: jodiedavey@truro-penwith.ac.uk

### Never keep concerns about children, young people & adults with care & support needs' safety to yourself

## STAFF

#### SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

#### Principal

Martin Tucker

#### Director of Operations Jane Cashmore

#### **Director of Penwith & Ofsted Quality Nominee**

Lucy Maggs

#### Director of Student Experience & Designated Safeguarding Lead Lisa Briscoe

#### **Director of Business Partnerships, Apprenticeships & Ofsted Skills Nominee** Hayley McKinstry

#### Director of Curriculum Development Adele Bull

#### **Director of Teaching & Learning**

Vicky Pearson

#### **OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TEAM**

#### Head of University Centre Emily Myatt

#### Head of Academic Studies & Achievement Matt Bennett

#### Head of Vocational Studies & Personal Development Ben Evans

#### Head of Occupational Studies Victoria Wickington

#### Head of Penwith Campus Steve Kenward

Head of Digital Development Kevin Mccoag

#### Head of HRES Tristan James

Head of Finance Lucy Langdon

#### **KEY STAFF**

Head of Campus / Penwith College Steve Kenward

Admissions Frances Corin

Examinations Liam Hill

Finance Ruth Woolcock

Health & Safety Mike Murphy

Information Technology Guy Guerandel

Learning Suppport Gemma Marshall

Student Services Laura Kaley

Learning Resources / Libraries Jo Lapham

#### A LEVELS

Programme Team Leader Elle Wheatley Deputy Team Leader Emma Le Saux, Chris Hatch Programme Team Administrator Lucy Wing

OCCUPATIONAL Deputy Team Leader Freddy Ash, Dave Izzard Programme Team Administrator Beccy Carne

VOCATIONAL Programme Team Leader Tobias Rossi Deputy Team Leader Katie Maggs, Sue Kellas, Nadia Edyvean Programme Team Administrator Amanda Stepney-Walsh

### HALDRINE TRENEERE MANOR

PL



PORTHCURNO

7

#### PENWITH CAMPUS MAP

- 1 Main Entrance
- 2 Student Services
- 3 College Shop
- 4 Inspiration Salon
- 5 Senara Restaurant
- 6 Wind Turbine
- 7 Synthetic Turf Pitch
- 8 Main Reception



#### **Penwith College**

St Clare Street, Penzance, Cornwall TR18 2SA telephone: 01736 809000 email: penwithenquiries@truro-penwith.ac.uk web: www.truro-penwith.ac.uk

@penwithcollege
 @penwithcollege
 /Truro.Penwith.College

Part of Truro & Penwith College



